
Fairhaven Board of Selectmen – July 1, 2013 Open Session – 1 

 

 
Fairhaven Board of Selectmen 

July 1, 2013 Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 
 

 
Present: Chairman Charles Murphy, Vice Chairman Robert Espindola, Clerk Geoffrey Haworth, 
Executive Secretary Jeffrey Osuch, and Administrative Assistant Anne Kakley.  
 
Chairman Charles Murphy called the meeting to order in the Town Hall Banquet Room at 6:32 
p.m.  The meeting was telecast and video recorded by Government Access and video recorded 
by John Methia. 
 

MINUTES 
 

• Mr. Espindola motioned to approve the minutes of the June 10, 2013 meeting, open 
session.  Mr. Haworth seconded.  Vote was unanimous.  (3-0). 

• Mr. Espindola motioned to approve the minutes of the June 10, 2013 meeting, executive 
session.  Mr. Haworth seconded.  Vote was unanimous.   (3-0). 

• Mr. Espindola motioned to approve the minutes of the June 24, 2013 meeting, open 
session.  Mr. Haworth seconded.  Vote was unanimous.   (3-0). 

• Mr. Espindola motioned to approve the minutes of the June 24, 2013 meeting, executive 
session.  Mr. Haworth seconded.  Vote was unanimous.   (3-0). 

 
EXECUTIVE SECRETARY’S REPORT 

 
In his report, Mr. Osuch updated the Selectmen on the following meetings: 

 
• Thursday, July 4 – 

• Town Offices are closed (open on July 5) 
• Monday, July 8 – 

• 10:00 a.m. – Fire Negotiations 
• 4:00 p.m. – Police Negotiations 

• Tuesday, July 9 – 
• 7:00 a.m. – New School Building Committee meeting 
• 3:30 p.m. – Mattapoisett River Valley Advisory Committee 
• 4:30 p.m. – Mattapoisett River Valley Water District 

 
CHANGE ORDER #10 

 

 



Fairhaven Board of Selectmen – July 1, 2013 Open Session – 2 

 

The Board reviewed Change Order #10 for the New Wood School project, which was a credit in 
the amount of $96,486.49.  Part of the credit was due to asbestos removal on the old school not 
costing as much as it was expected to, said Mr. Osuch.  Mr. Espindola motioned to approve 
Change Order #10 in that credited amount.  Mr. Haworth seconded.  Vote was unanimous.  (3-0). 
 

REQUISITION #13 
 
The Board reviewed Requisition #13 for the New Wood School project, in the amount of 
$948,726.00.  Mr. Espindola motioned to approve Requisition #13 in that amount.  Mr. Haworth 
seconded.  Vote was unanimous.  (3-0). 
 

FAIRHAVEN SKYLINE WATERCOLOR PRINT 
 
The Chairman recognized John and Sally Medeiros for the presentation of a watercolor print. 
 
Mr. Medeiros said that, in the mid-1990s, he had commissioned a three-foot watercolor mural of 
the Fairhaven skyline, which was then transposed to the side of a 40-foot motor coach for his 
company.  He said that he gave permission to the Fairhaven High School Class of 1961 to reprint 
the image.   
 
Betsy LeBeau was also present, and was an important part of the effort.  She said that the class 
printed and framed the painting, selling them for about $150 each to raise money for landscaping 
and maintenance around the High School Memorial Park.  She said that every classmate was 
proud of the garden made possible by the print sales. 
 
The Board unveiled the print to the public and thanked Mr. and Ms. Medeiros, and Ms. LeBeau. 
 

CULTURAL COUNCIL APPOINTMENT 
 
The Board reviewed a letter of interest from Michael Luey, asking to be appointed to the 
Fairhaven Cultural Council.  Mr. Espindola motioned to appoint Mr. Luey to the Fairhaven 
Cultural Council.  Mr. Haworth seconded.  Vote was unanimous.  (3-0). 
 

CONSERVATION COMMISSION APPOINTMENT 
 
The Board reviewed a letter of interest from Louise Barteau, asking to be appointed to the 
Conservation Commission.  The ConCom is currently very low on members and has difficulty 
achieving a quorum.  As such, the Board was eager to have Ms. Barteau join, and they 
considered her a qualified applicant.  Mr. Espindola motioned to appoint Louise Barteau to the 
Conservation Commission.  Mr. Haworth seconded.  Vote was unanimous.  (3-0). 
 

PUBLIC HEALTH NURSING CONTRACT 
 
The Board reviewed a contract for public health nursing with the Community Nurses 
Association.  The Board of Health had already signed the contract and asked the Board to also 
approve and sign the annual contract. 



Fairhaven Board of Selectmen – July 1, 2013 Open Session – 3 

 

 
Mr. Espindola asked if the Board of Health was at all involved in the process of Emergency 
Preparedness.  Mr. Osuch said that the Community Nurses Association was involved and would 
collaborate with the Board of Health in an emergency if their assistance were needed.  Mr. 
Haworth added that there was a combined CERT (Community Emergency Response Teams) to 
which both the Nurses and the Board of Health contributed. 
 
Mr. Espindola motioned to approve and sign the contract.  Mr. Haworth seconded.  Vote was 
unanimous.  (3-0). 
 

OUTDOOR MOVIE NIGHT 
 
The Board reviewed a letter from Wayne Oliveira, Chairman of the Bicentennial Committee, and 
John Medeiros and Vicki Paquette, co-chairmen of the Bicentennial Committee, requesting 
permission to use Livesey Park for a family outdoor movie night, which will be free to the public 
and funded privately by civic organizations.  The Board was supportive to the request and it was 
so approved, with Mr. Espindola motioning and Mr. Haworth seconding.  Vote was unanimous. 
(3-0). 
 

TAX TITLE 
 
At 6:54 p.m., the Board met with Treasurer Wendy Graves and Town Planner Bill Roth to 
discuss possibilities for three Town-owned tax title properties:  124 Alden Road, 12 Diamond 
Street and 14 Grandview Ave. 
 
124 Alden Road – Mr. Roth said that the former Staffon property is 4.2 acres zoned industrial 
and assessed at about $500,000.00.  It was not auctioned off last year because the bidding could 
be set as low as $100,000.00 and the Selectmen had wanted to get as much as it could for the 
property.   
 
Ms. Graves said that the market value is typically higher than the assessed value.  Mr. Roth 
discussed the structure on the property, which cannot be salvaged and will have to be 
demolished.  Mr. Espindola said that he thought the Board should look into getting an appraisal 
on the property.  Ms. Graves thought that the Board could look into finding a volunteer realtor to 
sell the property at no cost to the Town.  Mr. Haworth indicated that one realtor in the audience 
(Dawn Devlin) might be willing to help.  It was decided that the Board would revisit the matter 
in two weeks when it had more information about the lot’s appraisal, and/or how much it could 
be sold or auctioned off for. 
 
12 Diamond Street – Mr. Roth said that the Building Inspector has said that this lot is likely 
unbuildable due to the prevalence of wetlands.  As such, Mr. Roth said that the Board of 
Selectmen should seek a more detailed answer on the lot from the Conservation Commission.  
There is currently a structure on the property but it is dilapidated.   Mr. Roth said that the Board 
would have to decide that, if the lot was buildable, if they would be willing to offer the lot for a 
Habitat for Humanity home, which would place the lot back on tax roles. 
 



Fairhaven Board of Selectmen – July 1, 2013 Open Session – 4 

 

The Board indicated that it would like more information – namely, how much the average 
Habitat home is worth, and a comparison of the tax revenue to the revenue produced by 
auctioning/selling the lot (and recuperating $23,000.00 from tax default). 
 
Both Mr. Haworth and Mr. Espindola said that it was a nice thought to consider the social aspect 
of Habitat for Humanity, but that the Town would have to consider the financial impact of such a 
donation as well.  Mr. Roth said that he would contact Habitat for Humanity to get more 
information on the value of the average Habitat home, and Ms. Graves said that they would 
contact a realtor to get more information on selling the lot.  The issue of 12 Diamond Street was 
tabled to July 15. 
 
14 Grandview Ave – Mr. Roth said that part of the structure on this lot has caved in.  Ms. Graves 
said that the building will definitely be a tear-down.  $25,000.00 needs to be recuperated on this 
property.  It is assessed at $177,000.00. 
 
Mr. Espindola said that he would also like to see this property be looked at by a realtor, and get 
more information about how much the Town could get for the property.  The issue of 14 
Grandview Ave was also tabled to July 15. 
 
Mr. Roth said that the last time the topic of tax title was discussed with the Selectmen, he had 
suggested forming an ad-hoc committee to review tax title properties.  The committee, he said, 
could consist of the Town Planner, the Treasurer, the Executive Secretary, the Building 
Commissioner/Conservation Agent, and possibly a representative member of the Board of 
Selectmen.  Mr. Haworth was supportive to this suggestion, and said that he did not think that a 
Selectman would have to sit on such a committee, as the duties would be appropriate to Mr. 
Roth’s role. 
 
Mr. Espindola motioned to appoint the ad hoc committee as described by Mr. Roth, to consist of 
the Town Planner, the Treasurer, the Executive Secretary, and the Building 
Commission/Conservation Agent.  Mr. Haworth seconded.  Vote was unanimous.  (3-0). 
 

PARK MOTORS STAGING AREA 
 
At 7:17 p.m., the Board initiated a discussion with Mr. Roth regarding the use of the “Park 
Motors Property” on Main Street for the staging of equipment for CDBG work.  The meeting 
was prompted by a letter from Lianne Girard, who claims that she has had to accept less than 
market value for the properties she has sold on Main Street, due to the unsightly staging area at 
the Park Motors property. 
 
Mr. Roth said that the property is owned by the Schwartz family and is not Town-owned, but 
that the Town is granted a contractual right from the Schwartz family, to use the site at no cost.  
The current contract is valid through November 2013, he said.  Pavao Construction uses the site 
to store equipment for two concurrent CDBG projects.  He said that the two projects he is 
referencing – one on Fort Street and the other on Park Ave – are close to completion with only 
“punch lists” remaining.  However, he has another CDBG project potentially forthcoming on 
Eliot Lane.  If the CDBG grant is approved, he said, he would again seek to use the Schwartz 



Fairhaven Board of Selectmen – July 1, 2013 Open Session – 5 

 

land as a staging area.  He said that debris piles at the Park Motors site is gone now, and if the 
neighbors have an issue to dust, that he would take care of it. 
 
Mr. Espindola said that he thought the neighbors just wanted to see a “light at the end of the 
tunnel” in regards to the Park Motors use.  Mr. Roth said that, other than the Elliot Lane project, 
the only other potential village project would be on Water Street, and the property owners on 
Water Street have so far voiced opposition to a CDBG project there.  He said that if anyone has 
any additional concerns about the Park Motors site staging, they should contact him at his office. 
 

CDBG PROJECT AMENDMENT 
 
At 7:25 p.m., the Board voted to transfer $50,000.00 from the Park Ave and Main Street road 
project to place into CDBG housing and rehab.  Mr. Espindola motioned to sign the document.  
Mr. Haworth seconded.  Vote was unanimous.  (3-0). 
 

REVOLUTION ENERGY 
 
At 7:26 p.m., the Board met with Clay Mitchell and Mike Behrmann of Revolution Energy, and 
Jack Eggelston of Blue Sky Power, to discuss the solar landfill project.  Mr. Eggelston explained 
that Blue Sky Power’s role in the set-up of the solar array was now concluded and that the 
primary contact person for solar maintenance would be Mr. Behrmann from this point on.  Mr. 
Mitchell and Mr. Behrmann introduced themselves and told the Board a little about their 
company, Revolution Energy. 
 
Discussion ensued on the Revolution Energy invoice cycle versus the NSTAR billing cycle, and 
how the Town could manage to reconcile the two.  NSTAR bills reflect monetary credits that 
must be reconciled with the KWH reflected on invoices by Revolution Energy.  Hastings Middle 
School has been named the main recipient of the energy credits, but the school is using less than 
is produced and the Town will have to name additional buildings to help in using up the credit. 
 
Mr. Osuch said that he had seen a Hastings Middle School NSTAR bill, but that the Town would 
need help in figuring out what is actually being earned.  Mr. Behrmann said that they would go 
back and make sure that everything adds up, and will adjust invoicing cycles if necessary. 
 
Mr. Behrmann and Mr. Mitchell also noted that there was a rate error on the invoice that had 
been given to the Town.  They said they would rectify the mistake and resubmit an invoice. 
 
Mr. Osuch said that the Town would like to collaborate with Revolution Energy and Blue Sky 
Power to have a ribbon cutting ceremony for the landfill solar project.  The Board will contact 
Mr. Eggelston, Mr. Mitchell and Mr. Behrmann with potential dates. 
 

SEEAL SOLAR CANVASSING 
 
At 7:43 p.m., the Board met with Jennifer Marshall Grantham, Karen Stewart, Megan Boyle and 
Diana Painter, all of SEEAL, Tem Ferreira of Next Step Living, and Deidre Healy, Ann Richard 



Fairhaven Board of Selectmen – July 1, 2013 Open Session – 6 

 

and Vincent Marron of the Sustainability Committee to discuss the ongoing issue of solar 
canvassing and complaints. 
 
Ms. Marshall-Grantham, Director of SEEAL, said that she submitted a letter to the Board 
outlining remedies that the NSL representatives have taken to address complaints about pushy 
sales tactics and transparency. She said that the representatives have canvassed 500 to 700 homes 
and over 50 solar site visits have been completed with nine new solar contracts being signed in 
Fairhaven.  She said that they have reached 25 percent of their goal.  At this time, due to concern 
expressed from the Board of Selectmen relative to complaints received by the Selectmen’s 
Office, Ms. Marshall-Grantham said that they would be respectfully withdrawing all references 
to being “supported by the Town of Fairhaven”, though a couple old lawn signs may remain until 
they can collect them all.  She said that they were committed to working with the community and 
that she thought they could reach their goal within six months.  She asked that the Selectmen’s 
Office continue to forward any complaints or comments to them so they can continue to improve 
their program. 
 
Mr. Espindola said that the Board had had some concerns regarding the Town’s affiliation with 
the solar canvassing project, and he thought the separation of support from the Board of 
Selectmen would be best. He said that he hoped people would continue to be interested in the 
program and he said he apologized if anyone had an issue with the program. 
 
Mr. Haworth also said he was glad that the SEEAL and NSL organizers were making the 
decision to discontinue affiliation with the Fairhaven Select Board, as he was going to ask the 
Selectmen to withdraw their support.  Mr. Haworth said that he thought the Board of Selectmen 
should be very careful with supporting individual businesses in the future.  He said that he was 
supportive of solar power and that he hoped the NSL representatives would continue to address 
issues and improve their techniques. 
 
The Board thanked the SEEAL and NSL representatives and wished them well.  Ann Richard 
was recognized by the Chairman.  She said that she wanted to focus on the good work that 
SEEAL and NSL has done.  She praised their work and encouraged residents to still participate 
in the solar program. 
 

BOARD OF HEALTH ELECTION 
 
At 7:52 p.m., the Board broached the topic of the Board of Health election.  The Banquet Room 
was filled to capacity with members of Windwise and Friends of Fairhaven Wind present.  Some 
residents stood in the hallway and listened. 
 
Mr. Murphy said that he had received a final court decision via Town Counsel in regards to the 
April 1, 2013 Board of Health election.  The court order indicates that, due to improprieties 
related to the election made by the Town Clerk, the election results are inconclusive and a new 
election will be needed.  Mr. Murphy said that a minimum of 51 days is needed to hold an 
election.  As such, the suggested date from the Town Clerk was September 9, 2013.  Other 
candidates will be considered if they pull papers and get the necessary 50 signatures to get on the 
ballot. 



Fairhaven Board of Selectmen – July 1, 2013 Open Session – 7 

 

Mr. Espindola asked if the Town Clerk was satisfied with the September 9, 2013 election date.  
Mr. Murphy said yes.  Mr. Osuch noted that Town Clerk Eileen Lowney had been asked to 
attend the July 1 Selectmen’s meeting, yet was not in attendance. 
 
Attorney Ann Ponichtera-DeNardis was recognized by the Chairman.  She asked for a “point of 
clarification”, asking if the previous candidates named in the lawsuit – John Wethington and 
Peter DeTerra – would again have to pull papers to be on the ballot.  Mr. Murphy said yes.  Atty. 
Ponichtera-DeNardis said she objected to her client, John Wethington, having to pull papers 
again.  She said that she saw no basis in the court’s order for the original candidates to pull 
papers again. 
 
Mr. Murphy said that it was expressed to him that the two original candidates would indeed have 
to pull papers and get signatures again to make sure that they get onto the ballot. 
 
Atty. Ponichtera-DeNardis requested the Board of Selectmen to ask a representative of the 
Secretary of State’s office to come to Fairhaven and “re-educate” the Town Clerk and the Board 
of Registrars so the Town would not suffer another faulty election.  Mr. Murphy said that he was 
aware of the Town Clerk already going through some additional training since April 1. 
 
Mr. Haworth motioned to hold the election on September 9, 2013.  Mr. Espindola seconded.  
There was discussion on the motion: 
 

• Dan Freitas, representative of “Friends of Fairhaven Wind” (“Friends”), indicated that the 
Friends felt the entire election was flawed, and that the entire ballot – which included 
Selectmen candidates, Town Meeting members, etc. – should be set aside and redone.  
“It’s pretty bad the way things were handled,” said Mr. Freitas, who called it “an unfair 
election”.  Mr. Murphy agreed that there have been problems in the matter, especially 
related to communication.  Mr. Murphy said that he did not know about an additional 
ballot found in the ballot box in preparation for the State Senate Primary, until he heard 
about it from the media, despite the fact that the Town Clerk and Town Counsel had been 
aware of the additional ballot. 

 
• Ken Pottel said that he only disputed the results of the Board of Health race.  He argued 

against the previous speaker, saying that there was not a dispute in the machine count in 
the race, and that the newly found ballot had been counted by the machine. 

 
• Gregory Bettencourt said that he did not understand the desire to push for a September 

election.  He asked the Board to “slow down”.   “I trust my Town fathers and the Town 
Clerk to do their jobs,” he said.  “Let’s slow it down [and] talk to Town Counsel.”  He 
said that the Board should offer the ballot as additional evidence to Judge Robert Kane.  
“Please, I beg you, don’t tear this Town apart,” said Mr. Bettencourt. 

 
• Atty. Ponichtera-DeNardis refuted earlier speakers, saying that the election results are 

final for everyone other than Mr. Wethington and Mr. DeTerra.  She said that the other 
candidates had a 30-day window in which they could have appealed, but did not.  She 



Fairhaven Board of Selectmen – July 1, 2013 Open Session – 8 

 

said that the Selectmen had no authority to set aside any other races, and that there was 
no intention to appeal the Bristol County court decision.  To this statement, Peter 
DeTerra, who was present, said something unintelligible to Atty. Ponichtera-DeNardis. 

 
• Dan Freitas again spoke.  He refuted Mr. Pottel’s statement, saying that there was indeed 

a count problem with the machines.  He again stated that the entire election had been 
flawed and it warranted further attention. 

 
• Eddie Freitas said that the only fair thing to do is to hold another election. 

 
• Curt Devlin spoke to the issue of slowing down the matter.  He disagreed with Mr. 

Bettencourt’s plea to slow down the process.  Mr. Devlin said that the Board should act 
as quickly as it could, saying that there was a need to have a sit-in Board of Health with 
the power to act, as soon as legally possible. 

 
• Pat Crabbe asked the Board if the newly found ballot, which had been cast for Mr. 

DeTerra, could be counted now.  The Board indicated that Town Counsel had said the 
ballot was invalid now that the whole Board of Health election had been set aside.  
However, said Mr. Murphy, the ballot in question had not been destroyed. 

 
• Henry Ferreira said that even if the judge had known about the ballot, there were enough 

doubts cast in the very close Board of Health race for a judge to throw out the results.  He 
said that he wanted the Board of Selectmen to announce the new election date as soon as 
possible so the Board of Health could “get someone competent”. 

 
• Curt Devlin again spoke, this time asking the Board if they had received any legal advice 

on the current membership of the Board of Health and its ability to act.  Mr. Murphy said 
that he had been advised by Town Counsel that the Board of Health can continue to act 
and its membership will include candidate and incumbent Peter DeTerra until such time 
an election can be completed. 

 
• Dawn Devlin said that she felt a new election should be completed as soon as possible.   

 
Upon Mr. Haworth’s motion to set an election for the Board of Health for September 9, 2013, 
and Mr. Espindola’s second, it was so voted unanimously.  (3-0). 
 

FAIRHAVEN WIND LLC 
 
At 8:16 p.m., the Board met with Sumul Shah, Gordon Deane and Jim Sweeney, all of Fairhaven 
Wind, LLC.   
 
Mr. Shah handed out a response to the Board of Selectmen’s June 14 Notice of Default letter.  
See Attachment A for the Fairhaven Wind LLC’s response to the Notice of Default. 
 



Fairhaven Board of Selectmen – July 1, 2013 Open Session – 9 

 

Mr. Shah said that Fairhaven Wind LLC disagrees that there has been a default on the lease.  He 
added that they disagree on the DEP’s methodology, and claimed that the project was ready to be 
fully in compliance.  He said that Fairhaven Wind has completed testing as recent as last week.  
He said that during the summer months, the background ambient sound is high enough that the 
turbines do not risk exceeding the 10 decibel threshold.  He said that because the turbines are in 
compliance, there is no reason for the turbines to be shut down.  Mr. Shah said that certain 
conditions and times are more problematic than others.  He said that the particular problem was 
winter when the ambient noise is lower and there is no foliage on the trees to buffer the sounds 
of the blades. 
 
Mr. Shah said that the letter he distributed (Attachment A) would outline a draft mitigation plan.  
He said that they would consider “feathering” the blades, but they were not certain the feathering 
would work.  He said that it was more likely that they could achieve certain compliance by 
shutting down one turbine under certain conditions, at certain times of the day, at certain times of 
the year.  “According to the lease, our default, if any, has been cured,” said Mr. Shah. “We are 
ready, willing and able to implement the plan.” 
 
Mr. Shah said that he had spent some time reflecting on the matter, and had spoken with Town 
residents.  His first thought was that the plan, as outlined in Attachment A, would work.  His 
second thought was that, no matter what plan they proposed, there would be some residents who 
would be critical of it.  He noted that the last time they came before the Board, they had heard 
about a “United Fairhaven”, but he said that he did not see a United Fairhaven forming.  He 
stressed the importance of compromise for the sake of the Town’s financial and environmental 
health.  He said that Fairhaven Wind, LLC, had a right to be free to conduct a successful 
business. 
 
Mr. Shah said that the residents also deserve to be able to sleep at night.  He said that the 
mitigation plan could facilitate that, but that timing was critical because the 12-hour ordered 
shut-down of the turbines was costing $1,600.00 a day in lost revenue.  He said that the 
$1,600.00 liability – whether it should be borne by Fairhaven Wind LLC or the Town – can be 
decided at a later date. 
 
On July 15, said Mr. Shah, Fairhaven Wind LLC will submit a finalized version of their 
mitigation plan to present to the Board of Health. 
 
Mr. Espindola said that he would like to regroup with the Board of Health to delineate the duties 
and roles of each board in this process.  He refuted a claim of Mr. Shah, saying that he scanned 
the packet just given to him (Attachment A) and could not find any evidence that the turbines 
had passed recent testing by the DEP. 
 
Mr. Shah said that they were waiting on one more wind/weather condition to occur so they could 
complete their testing, but that it could take some time. 
 
Mr. Murphy noted that both the Mass DEP and the CEC had agreed to be a part of any additional 
meetings. 
 



Fairhaven Board of Selectmen – July 1, 2013 Open Session – 10 

 

Mr. Haworth said that he was happy to see a spirit of cooperation from Fairhaven Wind LLC.  
He said that he would prefer to find a middle ground over taking the matter to a court level and 
spending hundreds of thousands in legal fees. 
 
Grant Menard said that the whole matter “saddened” him.  He said that his next-door neighbors 
do not suffer from the wind turbine noise as much as his family does, due to situation, angle and 
foliage.  “Whether it’s 9.9 decibels or 10 decibels – it’s the repetition that drives you crazy,” said 
Mr. Menard.  He said that he respected people’s right to advocate for the wind turbines, but not 
at the cost of his family. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the formation of an all-inclusive group to establish a compromise 
for the Town, Fairhaven Wind LLC, Windwise, and Friends of Fairhaven Wind. 
 
Barbara Acksen, member of the Board of Health, was recognized by the Chairman.  She said that 
the Board of Health has not had a chance to form an agreement with Fairhaven Wind LLC and 
that the Board of Selectmen should sit down with the Board of Health before going ahead with 
their own agreement. 
 
Dan Freitas was recognized by the Chairman.  He said that the wind turbine advocates have 
stayed “on the sidelines” for a long time hoping the issue would settle.  Instead, he said, it has 
reached a “fevered pitch” and for that reason, the Friends of Fairhaven Wind chose to organize.  
He said that they want to see the turbines in compliance, but that the 7:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. shut 
down was not commensurate to the times when violations occurred.  He said that two separate 
Town Meetings approved the wind turbines, and that a contract was signed.  He said that the 
turbines could not be expected to come into compliance if they are not allowed to operate.  He 
said that the decisions that the Board of Selectmen and the Board of Health make will affect 
everyone who pays taxes in the Town, and could lead to layoffs for Town employees.  Mr. 
Freitas said that the Friends of Fairhaven Wind was a bigger group than Windwise, and that it 
would now be the “vocal majority”.  He asked the Board if it would favor the turbines operating 
24/7 if they are brought up to compliance. 
 
Mr. Haworth said that the developer was before them and that they needed to seize the 
opportunity to work to a resolution.  He said that when he motioned to send a Notice of Default 
to the developer on June 10, he was acting within his authority as a member of the Board of 
Selectman.  He said that he was hopeful that a discussion would lead to a resolution. 
 
Mr. Murphy said that he just wanted to help residents get a good night’s sleep and he wanted to 
do it without creating a financial burden to the Town. 
 
Donald Mulcare said that he thought the problem required a “scientific” approach, to include 
surveying neighborhoods to see how individual homes can be amended to reduce their 
complaints. 
 
Dan Freitas said that, at the first meeting of Friends of Fairhaven Wind, roughly half of the 30 
people in attendance said that they lived in the wind turbine area.  He said that not all the wind 
turbine neighbors claim to be suffering.  He said that if the matter winds up in court, a judge will 



Fairhaven Board of Selectmen – July 1, 2013 Open Session – 11 

 

likely rule in favor of Fairhaven Wind LLC.  Mr. Freitas said that the Friends of Fairhaven Wind 
would be meeting again on July 11, and he invited everyone, including Windwise, to attend. 
 
Mr. Murphy said that everyone could agree that the primary goal is to improve Fairhaven.  He 
said that he did not hold the authority to make a motion to lift the 7:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. ban. 
 
John Methia was recognized by the Chairman.  He said that the matter was not between the 
“victims” and Friends of Fairhaven Wind. He said that the matter was now between Fairhaven 
Wind, LLC, and the Board of Selectmen and the Board of Health.   He directed his comments to 
the developers when he said the machines were out of compliance, and that the Board of Health 
has labeled the turbines a hazard, despite Mr. Shah’s contention regarding the DEP testing 
methods. 
 
Henry Ferreira said that he did not think the developers would do well in court.  In addition to 
purported health impacts, property values are affected by the turbines, said Mr. Ferreira. 
 
Curt Devlin said that the developers should grant access to its data related to the turbines.  Mr. 
Shah said that the data was proprietary and that hundreds of local jobs could be risked if the data 
were not shared with discretion.  Mr. Shah did say that Fairhaven Wind LLC could consider an 
agreement with the Town to authorize one person to access and digest the information for the 
Town’s use. Details on an agreement could be determined at a later date, said Mr. Shah. 
 
Linda Therrian was recognized. She said that she was very close to the turbines and that she did 
not have an issue with the turbines. 
 
The Board expressed appreciation to the representatives of Fairhaven Wind, LLC, for coming 
before the Board to cooperate.  Mr. Haworth said that he wanted to see a resolution prior to July 
15 and the Board agreed it was important to find a representative from the Board of Health to 
work on resolution with Fairhaven Wind LLC. 
 

RECESS 
 
The Chairman recessed the meeting from 9:12 p.m. to 9:22 p.m. 
 

CUSHMAN PARK EASEMENT 
 
Per the Chairman’s request, Ms. Kakley furnished the Board with the filing fees for an easement 
for 188 Green Street, which was $75.00.  Mr. Osuch said that there was still some question as to 
the cost of preparing the documents for filing, which had been discussed at a prior meeting.  It 
was resolved that the Board would look into the cost further and revisit the matter of the 
easement at a later meeting. 
 

TOWN COUNSEL 
 



Fairhaven Board of Selectmen – July 1, 2013 Open Session – 12 

 

Upon request from Bob Espindola, the Board discussed Town Counsel.  Mr. Espindola said that 
he had researched by visiting the Massachusetts Municipal website and looking over the various 
municipal law firms listed. 
 
Mr. Haworth said that he was not happy with current Town Counsel (Thomas Crotty) for the fact 
that Atty. Crotty had known about the extra ballot and had not informed the Board, or the court. 
But before acting, said Mr. Haworth, he wanted to give Atty. Crotty a chance to explain what 
had happened regarding the found ballot.  Mr. Haworth said that he thought the Board should 
start by accepting proposals from other firms.  Upon request from the Board, Atty. Crotty had 
also submitted curriculum vitae. 
 
Mr. Murphy said that the Town Counsel was a large line item and it should be carefully 
considered.  He presented to the Board a Legal Services Authorization form (Attachment B) that 
all departments are supposed to use when they request use of Town Counsel.  Departments are 
not using the form to completion, or at all, said Mr. Murphy.  He said that if the form had been 
properly used, they might have found out about the ballot that Ms. Lowney and Atty. Crotty 
discovered. 
 
The form was reviewed by the Board.  The form will be altered to strike the phrase “with the first 
billing”.  Mr. Espindola motioned to send the form out to all departments, along with a memo 
requiring the completion of the form prior to a request for Town Counsel services.  In this 
manner, a standing rule would be created, requiring the form prior to Town Counsel use.  Mr. 
Haworth seconded.  Vote was unanimous.  (3-0).  The Board also asked Mr. Osuch to tell Atty. 
Crotty not to issue legal services until the form is complete. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
Mr. Murphy noted with regret that that the organizers of the annual Fairhaven Homecoming had 
canceled the 2013 Homecoming, due to extreme weather conditions.  The Fairhaven 
Improvement Association still managed to sell all of its cacoila.   
 
Mr. Espindola said that he was looking forward to the July 4 parade, which will take place on 
July 4 at 9:30 am. 
 
Mr. Murphy said that July 6, 2013 will be a Festival Day on West Island 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
At 9:46 p.m., Mr. Espindola motioned to enter Executive Session pursuant to MGL Ch 30A § 21: 

• To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining – Clerical, Fire, Police, 
Dispatchers Union negotiations 

• To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining or litigation – Fairhaven Wind 
LLC 

 



Fairhaven Board of Selectmen – July 1, 2013 Open Session – 13 

 

Mr. Haworth seconded the motion to enter Executive Session for the aforementioned reasons.  
Vote was unanimous.  (3-0). Roll call vote:  Mr. Espindola in favor.  Mr. Murphy in favor.  Mr. 
Haworth in favor. 
 
Respectfully, 

 

Anne Kakley 

Selectmen’s Secretary  
Minutes approved 7/15/2013 


































